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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Regional Public Health Networks


OFFICIAL RESPONSES TO VENDOR QUESTIONS

RFA-2023-DPHS-02-REGION
	No.
	Question
	Answer

	1. 
	Page 5, Subsection 1.2.
If one organization intends to apply on behalf of more than one public health region, do they need to submit separate applications?
	No. One application on behalf of multiple regions is acceptable. The applicant should clearly answer the questions based on the individual networks within the single application.

	2. 
	Page 6, Subsection 1.2.6.1.1.
What is the Strategic Planning Prevention Framework Assessment?
	The Strategic Prevention Framework is a prevention planning process (not a role). Details can be found at https://www.samhsa.gov/resource/ebp/strategic-prevention-framework.

	3. 
	Page 7, Subsection 1.2.6.1.7.
What types of advocacy efforts are supported?
	Examples of advocacy include providing education on the State's underage tobacco laws to tobacco retailers, providing education on the risks and consequences of adolscent tobacco use, and encouraging tobacco retailers to eliminate or reduce tobacco marketing in store fronts.

	4. 
	Page 7, Subsection 1.2.6.1.8.
Previous contracts have not included a Substance Misuse Prevention 3-Year Plan. What are the requirements for this plan, and when will it be due?
	Selected Applicants will receive guidance by the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services (BDAS) at a kick-off meeting (not yet scheduled). Deliverables under the previous contract may no longer apply.

	5. 
	Page 8, Subsection 1.2.7.
Their appears to be a cut in funding for Continuum of Care (COC) and an increase in monies to Substance Misuse Prevention (SMP). Will guidance be provided on reporting requirements?
	There has been no reduction in Continuum of Care (COC) funding.

	6. 
	Page 10, Subsection 1.2.8.
What are the expectations for the $25,000 of Overdose Prevention dollars?
	See Subsection 1.2.8.

	7. 
	Page 10, Subsection 1.2.8.1.
a) Is there an error in the RFA language for 1.2.8.1 regarding 3 years of funding? Is it a 3 month initiative?

b) Is there a tool for developing a needs assessment?

c) Will Narcan be supplied under this initiative?
	a) The Department recognizes that 3 months is not enough time to develop a comprehensive assessment. The Department will provide State and Regional Data to inform the work. The selected Applicants will work with regional stakeholders to identify local data to inform the work.

b) The Department will provide a tool.

c) The Department will purchase Narcan.

	8. 
	Page 11, Subsection 1.2.8.2
What harm reduction materials or resources can be purchased with this funding?
	The Department will purchase Fentanyl Test Strips and Narcan, and will distribute directly to the Regional Public Health Network (RPHN) or via the Doorways.

	9. 
	Page 11, Subsection 1.2.9.
a) What are the responsibilities of the Community Health Worker (CHW)?

b) Are there additional funds to support this position?
	a) See Subsection 1.2.9.

b) The Department will analyze unspent funds to be distributed to the selected vendor(s) for State Fiscal Years (SFYs) 2023 and 2024.

	10. 
	Page 11, Subsection 1.2.9.3.2.
What support will applicatants receive to meet deliverables?
	Applicants are encouraged to describe their competence to perform contact tracing (if required) given the identified scope of work and budget. Contact tracing will occur at the Department's direction in response to unique circumstances based upon best practices and guidance documents. Therefore, it is scalable based upon the trajectory of the pandemic. Additional funding will be provided in the event the applicant needs to fill this role.

	11. 
	Page 14, Subsection 1.2.9.4.3.
Will data tracking system forms be provded to RHPNs?
	The Department will work with the RPHN to identify performance measures consitent with the requirements of the funding source. The RHPNs will be responsible for implementing tracking and documentation mechanisms.

	12. 
	Page 16, Subsection 1.2.10.1.4.
Will there be a template provided by the Department?
	The selected vendor is responsible for developing meeting note templates.

	13. 
	Page 16, Subsection 1.2.10.1.4.1.
Are Public Health Advisory Council (PHAC) Meeting minutes required to be available to the public upon request, or are they required to be submitted to an entity or posted on our websites?
	See Subsection 1.2.10.1.4.1.

	14. 
	Page 17, Subsection 1.2.10.1.11.
What should be incorporated with the four (4) educational and training programs?
	The selected vendor should develop trainings based upon the needs identified within each network in consultation with the Department regarding public health emergency preparedness and response activities.

	15. 
	Page 17, Subsection 1.2.10.1.7.
What support will be provided to align the Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) with Substance Misuse Primary prevention coordination (SMPC), CoC facilitation, and Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP)?
	The Department will work with the selected vendors to align the SHIP and CHIP to ensure documents are complementary and address the health assessment needs across New Hampshire.

	16. 
	Page 18, Subsection 1.2.11.1.3.
Is the Training and Exercise Program no longer called MYTEP?
	Yes. It is called the Integrated Preparedness Plan. The Department will provide a template to the selected vendors.

	17. 
	Page 20, Subsection 1.2.11.1.12.
Is there standardized training available, and if so, who can access training?
	The selected vendor should determine the format that is most useful for training participants who are PHN staff members and community partners.

	18. 
	Page 20, Subsection 1.2.11.1.15.
Will RHPNs facilitate WebEOC training?
	The selected vendor is responsible for ensuring the RPHN staff is trained in WebEOC which can be accomplished through collaborating with Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEM).

	19. 
	Page 20, Subsection 1.2.11.1.16.
What are the responsibilities of the selected vendor to support mass fatality management activies during emergencies?
	The selected vendor must be able to respond, as requested, by the Department. Responsibilities include but is not limited to collecting funeral home capacity within the RPHN, disseminating communications, and coordinating partners for a specific task, as directed.

	20. 
	Page 20, Subsection 1.2.11.1.17.
How does the Department define "emergency shelter," and what is the role of the seleted vendor to coordinate services?
	Emergency shelters are opened for a variety of reasons in response to a disaster or emergency situation. Selected vendors should establish relationships with their community partners to support shelter planning and operations. While specific needs are situational, selected vendors should be prepared to support administrative and operational needs at the request of the Department or community partners.

	21. 
	Page 21, Subsection 1.2.11.1.19.
What supplies would be beneficial for RPHNs to have on hand?
	The Department will work with the selected vendors to establish a supply list that will support all-hazards planning and response.

	22. 
	Page 21, Subsection 1.2.11.1.19.2.
Which program does the Department use to complete inventories in HIMS?
	The Department utilizes Juvare EMSupply for inventory documentation.

	23. 
	Page 21, Subsection 1.2.11.1.20.1.
What does the Department mean by "maintain proficiency"?
	The selected vendors must be able to effectively use the volunteer management system to communicate, coordinate, and organize volunteers in addition to performing data collection and retention.

	24. 
	Page 23, Subsection 1.2.12.4.1.3.
Will selected vendors be involved in the development of communications?
	The selected vendor should fulfill this requirement as the information becomes available to them.

	25. 
	Page 24, Subsection 1.2.12.5.1.2.
What funding can be used to purchase food for staff and volunteers at mass vaccination clinics?
	The purchase of food is not permissible under Federal allowances for Immunzation Funds.

	26. 
	Page 24, Subsection 1.2.12.5.2.
What does the Department mean by "as directed"?
	Targeted and mass vaccination clinics for emergency response will be directed by the Department. The role of the selected vendors is anticipated to shift according to level of response and availabilty of vaccine.

	27. 
	Page 24, Subsection 1.2.12.5.3.
Which system is the Department utilzing for vaccinations?
	Several systems are currently available for entering vaccine data, including VAMS, VINI, and NHIIS. This language allows flexibility of which system is used in the future.

	28. 
	Page 26, Subsection 1.2.12.6.2.2.
If the CERT is not currently in the Public Health Network, will selected vendors be responsible for creating one?
	The selected vendor must be able to activate mechanisms for ensuring public health responder staff, including CERT. If the network does not have a CERT, the selected vendor must establish relationships and collaborate with the CERT - even if the CERT does not directly report to the selected vendor.

	29. 
	Page 26, Subsection 1.2.12.6.2.3.
How does the Department define "Public Health Coordination with Healthcare Systems"?
	During public health surges, selected vendors are responsible for coordinating with external partners such as MRC, CERT, and Health Care Systems to maximize use of available staff resources.

	30. 
	Page 27, Subsection 1.2.12.6.3.
What is the role of Public Health Networks in the ACS?
	The selected vendors must participate in planning and response activities in response to a medical surge. The selected vendor will work with the Department and the Granite State Healthcare Coalition to perform medical surge response activities.

	31. 
	Page 27, Subsection 1.2.12.7.
a) How, and in what format should we report measures for CHWs? Will a reporting mechanism be provided?

b) What support and resources would the Department provide to meet the deliverables related to biosurveillance and contact tracing?
c) How will the Department communicate needs to selected vendors, and what additional resources will be provided?
d) What software is utilized for data management?
e) Who is responsible for medical direction?
f) Do regional biosurveillance teams need to staff an on-call nurse to support a regional bio surveillance operation?
g) Is there guidance on how to assess risk of travelers?
h) Who is responsible for managing and paying for John Hopkins contact tracing required training?
	a.) Applicants are encouraged to describe their competence to perform biosurveillance given the identified scope of work and budget. Contact tracing will occur at the Department's direction in response to unique circumstances based upon best practices and guidance documents. Therefore, it is scalable based upon the trajectory of the pandemic. Additional funds would be awarded to accomplish this task. Finally, the intention of this work is to augment the Departments biosurveillance staff in the event of surge situations.
b.) Additional funding would be provided to support biosurveillance staffing, logistical, and operational needs.
c.) The Department monitors best practices in biosurveillance. In the event of surge scenario(s) where the Department's biosurveillance staff require augmentation/support, the Department will notify the impacted vendor and provide additional funding to operationalize the task.
d.) The Department utilizes a variety of database tools and will work with the selected vendor if implementing these services is required.
e.) This program would be an extension of the Department's biosurveillance program which provides medical direction and clinical staff to support public inquiries.
f.) No. This program would be an extension of the Department's current program.
g.) The Department will provide the selected vendors with protocols in the event this program is operationalized.
h.) The Department will provide additional funding, if necessary, to have the PHN's staff complete minimum training requirements.

	32. 
	Page 28, Subsection 1.2.12.8.2.1.
Do applicants need to provide Vaccine/IG/Pharmaceutical Management Agreement(s)?
	Entities authorized to sign Vaccine/IG/Pharmaceutical Management Agreement(s) may continue to do so.

	33. 
	Page 31, Subsection 1.2.12.8.4.
Will the Deparment be using a template for 1.2.12.8.4.?
	There is no template provided. However, the Department will provide guidance on the annual year end self-assessment and improvement plan.

	34. 
	Page 32, Subsection 1.2.12.9.2.
a) Can the text please present as: The Selected Applicant may assist the Department and/or partners in planning and conducting mobile and other clinics to provide vaccinations against SARS-CoV-2 as directed by the Department, and in accordance with policies.

b) Please define the terms: “Vaccine strike teams, mobile vaccine clinics, satellite clinics, temporary clinics…”
	a.) See Addendum 1.

b.) These terms are to provide flexibility in where/how clinics may be deployed. Vaccine strike teams: a complete array of staff resources that can be mobilized to safely administer vaccine in any location. Mobile vaccine clinics: "pop-up centers" are sites that can be set up anywhere. Satellite clinics: a facility owned by an entitiy but operated at a distant site. Temporary clinics: non-permanent locations.

	35. 
	Page 34, Subsection 1.2.12.9.11.
What are NH Public Health Association meetings?
	A statewide coalition to reduce vaccine-preventable diseases is an initiative of the NH Public Health Association.

	36. 
	Page 34, Subsection 1.2.12.9.7.
Please define “medical professional”, and who qualifies: EMT, MA, RN, PA, NP, MD, DO?
	A medical professional is an individual who’s scope of practice and training allows for them to answer questions related to COVID-19 vaccination and provide clinical information related to COVID-19 vaccination, side effects, and precautions. This may include: RN, PA, NP, MD, DO.

	37. 
	Page 34, Subsection 1.2.12.9.8.
Can COVID-19 funds be used for marketing material as described in 1.2.12.9.8.?
	The activities listed under this subsection are educational in nature and not considered "marketing".

	38. 
	Page 35, Subsection 1.2.12.10.4.
Who will provides clinical supplies?
	Currently, the Department recives ancillary supplies for COVID-19 vaccination from the Federal Government. These supplies will be provided to the applicatants while supply lasts. Applicatants are required to procure necessary supplies to conduct vaccine clinics when not supplied by the state (i.e. Annual School Based Influenza Clinics).

	39. 
	Page 35, Subsection 1.2.12.10.8.
Can this be compensation through prepaid gas cards, or will each PHN be required to get a W9 for each volunteer so that a mileage reimbursement check can be issued from the PHN?
	Prepaid gas cards are Non-Allowable Expenses under Federal Immunization Funds. Applicatants are responsible for following standard accounting practices for paying salaries, benefits and travel (mileage) expenses.

	40. 
	Page 35, Subsection 1.2.13.
a) Is there an expectation that COVID-19 dollars would be used to support school-based clinics (Note: all Central NH schools declined including SARS-CoV-2 vaccine with SBCs clinics)?

b) Is there an expectation that COVID-19 dollars would be used to support school-based COVID clinics?
	a.) Selected vendors are expected to advance efforts to provide COVID-19 vaccination through SBC including addressing barriers to SAU non-participation. COVID-19 funds are not intended to be used to support Influenza only SBCs.

b.) Yes. Additional funding from COVID Immunization Grants is being awarded to support SBC's for the administration and co-administration of COVID-19 vaccine.

	41. 
	Page 35, Subsection 1.2.13.1.
Is the expectation for each PHN to offer simultaneous influenza/C19 vaccine clinics at regional schools this year?
	See Addendum 1.

	42. 
	Page 36, Subsection 1.2.13.1.4.
a) Can the word "store" be omitted or can it be rephrased as "physically or electronically store" in 1.2.13.1.4.?
b) Will the NHIP offer storage for consent forms to contractors lacking the ability to store them as it has in prior contract periods?
	a.) No. Records must be "stored" in accordance with any method that is compliant with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 

Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and other state and federal regulations.

b.) NHIP will not provide storage. Selected vendors are required to find storage for consent forms, and retain records and forms in accordance to state and federal regulations.

	43. 
	Page 36, Subsection 1.2.13.1.5.
Can the word “written” please be omitted from 1.2.13.1.5.?
	No. Capacity for documenting as electonic records is not always available. Written records may be stored electronically or any method that is compliant with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and other state and federal regulations.

	44. 
	Page 36, Subsection 1.2.13.1.7.
Does the IIS require the patients primary care physican to review information entered into the system?
	No. All documentation and notifications pertaining to the IIS must be in accordance with Administrative Rule He-P 307.

http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rules/state_agencies/he-p.html?msclkid=0b9885e8d16c11ec921ab3fbbbf5f9a3.

	45. 
	Page 39, Subsection 1.2.13.4.
Will additional resources need to be provided to support work completed in 1.2.13.4?
	No. The 24 hour timeframe is a federal requirement and is necessary for the NHIP to provide evidence of vaccine accountability to ensure proper storage and handling of vaccines. The requirements to be completed within 24 hours of each are specified in the RFA and capture information needed to account for doses administered, wasted, temperature monitoring logs to ensure maintainance of cold chain.

	46. 
	Page 41, Subsection 1.2.14.1.3.5.
Does SMPC lead staff have to be credentialed within one (1) year of hire as Certified Prevention Specialists to meet competency standards?
	Yes.

	47. 
	Page 41, Subsection 1.2.14.1.4.
Can a clinician provide medical command and direction for a clinic with just a BLS certificate?
	See Addendum 1.

	48. 
	Page 43, Subsection 1.2.15.1.3.
a) Are there reporting requirements for the agendas/minutes from SMP Leadership Groups?
b) Will trainings be provided on COC reporting requirements?
	a.) Yes.
b.) Yes.

	49. 
	Page 43, Subsection 1.2.15.1.3.1.
How will performance indicators be measured?
	See 1.2.13.4.5.1 through 1.2.13.4.5.1 and other indicators identified by the Department.

	50. 
	Page 45, Subsection 1.2.15.1.3.1.7.
What is the Community Mobilization Survey Tool referenced in this section?
	The Community Mobilization Tool will be introduced to the selected Applicants at the contract kickoff meeting.

	51. 
	Page 45, Subsection 1.2.15.1.4.
a) Can this measure be omitted for rural regions as it does not adequately take into account the challenges of addressing declining enrollment?
b) Is there an expectation that COVID-19 dollars would be used to support school-based COVID clinics?
c) Please clarify how the Department envisions contractors meeting the significant increase in Scope of Services through the addition of a second vaccine and an increase in schools/students reached while being level-funded?
d) Who will be providing medical direction for School Based Clinics?
	a.) No. This measure cannot be ommitted. This meaasure is a percentage, hence is not affected by declining enrollment as the denominator would also decrease.
b.) Yes.
c.) Additional funding ($50K per year) from COVID Immunization Grants is being awarded to support COVID-19 vaccination through SBCs.
d.) The Department anticipates going out to bid for these services.

	52. 
	Page 45, Subsection 1.2.15.1.4.1.
If boosters are not yet approved for certain age groups, are applicants still expected to increase vaccinations?
	Criteria for vaccine eligibility is taken into consideration.

	53. 
	Page 45, Subsection 1.2.15.1.4.2.
Can this measurement be removed until SBC clinic program receives adequate funding?
	No. This measure is a percentage, hence is not affected by declining enrollment as the denominator would also decrease.

	54. 
	Page 47, Subsection 1.2.16.5.
Is this requirement of monthly reporting regarding the Overdose Prevention Project? Is this reporting required for just the period of time the funding is available, 7/1-9/29/2022?
	Yes. 

	55. 
	Page 48, Subsection 1.2.16.6.3.
a) Is the expectation for COVID-19 and influenza reporting to be combined in a single report?
b) Will a reporting template be provided by NHIP?
c) Will tracking Medicaid be integrated in NHIIS or VINI?
	a.) Selected Applicants may submit a single report to include information specified under 1.2.16.6.3.
b.) Reporting templates are not currently available and will be considered by NHIP.
c.) Selected Applicants will be required to track Medicaid, as data in NHIIS may be incomplete due to voluntary participation.

	56. 
	Page 49, Subsection 1.2.16.8.
Is this reporting requirement for the Health Disparities Community Health Worker program?
	Yes.

	57. 
	Page 51, Subsection 1.2.16.8.15.
Will documents referenced here be provided to Rapplicatants  for CHW use?
	The Department will work with the selected vendors to develop templates. 

	58. 
	Page 53, Subsection 1.6.
a) If a vendor is applying to oversee multiple networks, does the applicant respond to mandatory questions for each region seperatly?
b) What is the page limit per question?
	a.) One application may be submitted when applying for multiple networks. However, the questions must be answered for each network. The 15 page limit is per network.
b.) 15 pages.

	59. 
	Page 55, Subsection 2.5.3.3.
Which party is responsbile for storing records associated with the work completed in this RFA?
	Due to privacy concerns, the NHIP is requiring applicatants  to retain immunization records, consent and related forms.

	60. 
	Page 66, Subsection 3.2.10.
What licenses, certificates, and permits are required to be submitted in the application package?
	Certificate of Good Standing and Certificate of Insurance. See Subsection 3.2

	61. 
	General Questions: 

a) How should an applicant indicate if they are not applying for certain sections of the RFA, as included in 1.2 (Scope of Services) and/or Exhibit E?
b) Is the requirement to conduct PHAC meetings biannually?
	a.) The appicants should indicate this in their answer to Q2.
b.) Yes.

	62. 
	Appendix E
a) Which scope of work does the hospital prepardness funding support?
b) Are there Medical Reserve Corps funds in this contract?
c) Are there specific expectations for the $25,000 of Overdose Prevention dollars?
d) What funding source and scope of work does the Strategic Planning Prevention Framework Assessment pertain to?
e) Is the Strategic Planning Prevention Framework the same as the SAMHSA Strategic Prevention Framework?
f) In general, does DHHS know what current (SFY22) budgets with unspent funds for Rapplicatants  will be allowed to carry forward into SFY23?
g) Is the RFA built in a way to supplement the cut in funding to COC from the SMP increase in funds?
h) Is the amounts listed on the funding sheet accurate?
i) Is there a minimum and maximum FTE requirements for the positions outlined in this contract?
j) If the applicant has a contract with the Department for services in SFY 22, will unsued funding be avaialable in SFY 23 and SFY 24?
	Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Medical Reserve Corp (MRC) programs.
c.) The Hospital Preparedness reference corresponds to the Medical Reserve Corp (MRC) programs. The Hospital Preparedness grant funds the MRC portions of this contract.
d.) Expectations are delineated in the Scope of Work-Section 1.2.8.
e.) The funding for this scope of work will be combined within the BDAS Substance Misuse Scope of Services to SMP, CoC and Strategic Prevention Framework. The requirement is for each RPHN to conduct the Strategic Prevention Framework in the contract period are listed in Sections 1.2.6, 1.2.7, 1.2.8, and 1.2.15.1.3.
f.) Yes: https://www.samhsa.gov/resource/ebp/strategic-prevention-framework.
g.) Funds from expired contracts are not eligilble to be rolled over into this contract.
h.) The CoC funding has not been cut; it is level funded.
i.) Yes.
j.) No.
k.) The Department will review each funding source and funding available, if the Department does have unsued funds or if new funds become available the Department will notify the selected Contractor(s). This would result in a contract amendment to this new contract. The funding listed in Appendix E is the current funding the Department has allocated for these efforts.

	63. 
	Appendix F
Do applicants have to complete one budget per region for each funding source by State Fiscal Year?
	Yes.
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